AD 646503

DISTRIBUTION OF THIS DOCUMENT IS UNLIMITED

ARCHIVE COPY

HYDRONAUTICS, incorporated research in hydrodynamics

Research, consulting, and advanced engineering in the fields of NAVAL and INDUSTRIAL HYDRODYNAMICS. Offices and Laboratory in the Washington, D. C., area: Pindell School Read, Heward County, Laurel, Md.

FEB 1 0 1967

المالية فالمافات شارا

TECHNICAL REPORT 231-12

THE GROWTH OF A TURBULENT WAKE IN A DENSITY-STRATIFIED FLUID

by

Walter P. M. van de Watering

November 1966

DISTRIBUTION OF THIS DOCUMENT IS UNLIMITED

Prepared Under

Office of Naval Research Department of the Navy Contract No. Nonr 3688(00) NR 220-016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

-1-

ABSTRACT	1
INTRODUCTION	2
EQUIPMENT AND EXPERIMENTAL TECHNIQUE	3
Tank and Stratified Fluid	3
Paddle Mixer	4
Data Reduction	5
RESULTS	6
ANALYSIS OF DATA	7
DISCUSSION	10
Growth of the Wake	10
Instant of Collapse	11
Horizontal Spreading	20
Collapsing Stages	21
CONCLUSIONS	24
REFERENCES	27

-11-

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure	1	•	Detail of Salt Water Diffusor
Figure	2	-	Spiral Paddles, 4" and 2" in Diameter
Figure	3	-	Sample Pictures of Spreading and Collapse of Wake for a = 0.0054 (Front View)
Figure	4	-	Definition Sketch of Wake
Figure	5	-	Growth and Subsequent Collapse in the Vertical Direction - Phase I
Figure	5a	-	Dimensionless Time History of Vertical Ordinate of Wake - Phase I
Figure	6	-	Growth and Subsequent Collapse in the Vertical Direction - Phase II
Figure	6а	-	Dimensionless Time History of Vertical Ordinate of Wake - Phase II
Figure	7	-	Growth and Subsequent Collapse in the Vertical Direction - Phase III
Figure	7a	-	Dimensionless Time History of Vertical Ordinate of Wake - Phase III
Figure	8	-	Dimensionless Representation of Data
Figure	9	-	Relation Between Maximum Vertical Extent of Wake and Time of Collapse
Figure	10	-	Scatter in Dimensionless Time of Collapse

-111-

Figure	11a	-	Wake Shape During Generation
Figure	11b	-	Wake Shape During Growth
Figure	11c	-	Wake Shape at Time of Collapse
Figure	114	•	Wake Shape After Collapse
Figure	12	•	Effect of Collapse on Rate of Spreading in the Horizontal Direction
Figure	13	-	Comparison of Theoretical and Presumed Actual Density Distribution Inside the Wake
Figure	14	-	Horizontal Spreading for $a = 0.002$ - Phase I
Figure	15	-	Initial Stage of Wake Collapse
Figure	16	-	Principal Stage of Wake Collapse
Figure	17	-	Increasing Areas of Wake with Time

-iv-

NOTATION

a	Stratification parameter = $\frac{1}{\rho_0} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y}$
Ъ	Rate of wake growth vertically at $x = 0$
b 1	Initial constant rate of wake growth in the vertical direction at $x = 0$
C	Constant in empirical formulae
D	Observed width of circular jet
g	Gravitational acceleration
n	Constant in empirical formulae
ρ	Fluid density
<u>96</u> 76	Vertical density gradient
ρ _ο , ρ	Fluid density at elevation of center of wake or that of mixed fluid inside the wake
t -	Time after agitation of pendulum
tcol	Time of collapse
t'	Time, after time of collapse
$\sqrt{\frac{1}{r^2}}$	Root-mean-square of the radius of the turbulent wake in pure water
$\sqrt{u^{12}}$	Turbulence intensity
$\sqrt{\frac{u_c}{u_c}}$	Turbulence intensity at time of collapse
R ₁	Richardson number
R _i c	Critical Richardson number
-	

Mean velocity of advance .

Umax

Um

Maximum velocity at axis of jet

x,y

Coordinate axes; x-axis is horizontal and y-axis is vertically upward with origin at center of wake

x Horizontal width at time of collapse

 y_0 Vertical extent of wake boundary at t = 0

 y_{max} Maximum vertical extent of wake boundary at x = 0and $t = t_{col}$

ABSTRACT

-1-

The force of gravity causes a turbulent wake in a densitystratified fluid to eventually cease its vertical growth and then to collapse towards its horizontal midplane. In the present investigation this phenomenon has been studied experimentally. The turbulent wake was created by means of a spiral paddle, agitated by a pendulum-type arrangement outside a transparent lucite tank. Data were obtained from tracings of the motion pictures taken by a 16 mm movie camera. Both the pendulum arrangement and the paddle diameter were varied to find the possible influence of the experimental conditions.

It was observed that the initial rate of growth in the vertical direction is constant, depending primarily on the density gradient and the agitation mechanism (i.e. pendulum and paddle diameter). This initial rate of growth of the wake, the maximum vertical thickness of the wake, the time at which collapse begins and the turbulence intensity within the wake at that time, were all correlated with the Vaisala frequency, resulting in three important constants which seemed to be independent of the experimental conditions.(

During the collapse the same three stages of collapse could be distinguished as had been defined previously by Wu; some differences in the post-collapse behavior were observed, however.

INTRODUCTION

-2-

The wake of a body moving in a fluid with a vertical density distribution is considerably different than that of the same body moving in a fluid having no density gradient. In the case of a density gradient, the initial expansion of the mixed fluid is quickly followed by a collapse in the vertical direction, which is accompanied by a further spreading in the horizontal direction. This phenomenon is caused by the force of gravity. The volume of the fluid in the wake behind the body has a more or less constant density due to mixing; driven by the hydrostatic pressures outside the wake, the constant density fluid is forced to seek its own density level in the surrounding fluid.

Only recently, several investigators have carried out laboratory investigations in order to understand the interaction of the turbulent three-dimensional wake with a linear vertical-density gradient. Schooley and Stewart (Reference 1) first studied this phenomenon in 1962 with a model self-propelled body and measured the vertical collapse and the horizontal spreading by introducing dye into the wake behind the body. Wu (Reference 2) in 1965 studied certain aspects of the wake in density-stratified fluid after collapse. He considered only gravitational and inertial effects and obtained in that way a good basic understanding of the collapse and spreading of the wake. Moreover he analyzed the internal waves generated by the wake collapse phenomenon (Reference 6).

-3-

In 1966, Stockhausen, Clark, and Kennedy (Reference 3) investigated the momentumless three-dimensional wake in a stratified rluid with a linear density gradient. Their experiments were also conducted with a self-propelled model in a large tank. Variations in salinity were measured in the zone of mixing by means of specially designed conductivity probes. In this way, normalized isochlor distributions for transverse cross-sections at various distances behind the model were deduced, from which information could be obtained about the extent of the mixed region.

In the present study, particular attention is given to the growth of the turbulent wake in the density-stratified fluid up to the moment of collapse. For some of the runs, information is obtained after collapse in order to check the validity of some of Wu's findings (Reference 2).

EQUIPMENT AND EXPERIMENTAL TECHNIQUE

Tank and Stratified Fluid

The experiments were carried out in a transparent tank 48 inches deep, 43 inches long, and 12.5 inches wide.

The vertical density stratification was obtained by introducing salt water through a diffusor at the bottom of the tank. A plastic screen cloth assured a uniform outflow from the diffusor. In order to prevent air bubbles from disturbing the stratification during filling, a 1/4-inch brass tube was mounted at the top of the diffusor, allowing the air bubbles to pass through the wall outside the lucite tank (See Figure 1). The density stratification was controlled by mixing different amounts of sodium chloride

-4-

in water. The successive layers of salt water were 1 inch thick and alternately colored with red dye. In this way, 24 layers were brought into the tank. The idealized, initial vertical density distribution of the fluid in the tank is a stepped line; but, as has been verified by Wu (Reference 2), leaving the fluid overnight assures a linear density stratification through molecular diffusion.

Paddle Mixer

The turbulent wake was generated by means of a spiral paddle which was known to generate good small scale turbulence (see Reference 4). A spiral paddle, 12-3/8 inches long, with a diameter of 2 inches was first used. It consisted of a brass spiral frame (one turn in 1.5 inches) on which a screen was soldered. The frame was fixed in place by three discs (see Figure 2). The paddle was supported across the tank, 20 inches above the bottom of the tank, by a 1/4-inch O.D. brass tube, in such a way that the axis of rotation of the paddle is perpendicular to the front and back wall of the lucite tank. In the brass tube many small openings were drilled. A rod 1/8-inch in diameter, which had been painted heavily with blue dye dissolved in polyvinyl alcohol, was inserted into the brass tube immediately preceding a test. It took several minutes for the dye to dissolve, during which time the turbulence created by the insertion of the rod was already damped out as could be clearly observed by the manner in which the heavier blue dye came out of the openings of the brass tube. The paddle was then agitated by means of a pendulum-type arrangement at the back of the tank. For the first set of experiments, this pendulum had an effective arm of 21 inches and a weight -5-

of 1.5 pounds. After release, the pendulum described an arc of approximately 270°, and on the way back slightly less than that. For the second set of experiments a shorter pendulum was used. This pendulum had an effective arm of 1 foot and a weight of 1.26 pounds. The third series of experiments were carried out with the long pendulum and a spiral paddle having a diameter of 4 inches (see Figure 2).

Data Reduction

The wake created in the above-mentioned way was more or less two-dimensional, at least until the moment of collapse. The boundary of this wake was clearly visible against the background of the color-layer stratification system. The growth and collapse of this wake was photographed by a 16 mm movie camera. With the help of coordinate lines drawn on the wall of the tank, wake profiles could be traced. The time could be read accurately to within 1/100 of a second from a clock which was also photographed. A set of sample profiles for the wake generated with the 2-inchdiameter paddle and the long pendulum is given in Figure 3.

It was a disadvantage that the change in wake thickness after t = 0 was small in comparison with the height of the wake at t = 0. Moreover, irregularities in the wake shape due to the presence of eddies increased the difficulty of taking accurate measurements, and resulted in a scatter of the data points along the course of the curves (see Figures 5, 6 and 7).

-6-

RESULTS

Phase I of this study was performed with the 2-inch-diameter spiral paddle, agitated by the long pendulum. Nine tests were carried out and analyzed: one in pure water and eight with various linear density gradients. The particular method of introducing the salt water in layers allowed a minimum value for $a = \frac{1}{\rho_0} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y}$ of 0.002.

In pure water, where the turbulent wake is more or less circular in cross-section, the area of the wake was determined from tracings of the movie-film by means of a planimeter. From the measured area, the root-mean-square of the radius of the wake was computed and plotted versus time, as in Figure 5. Time t = 0is thereby taken as the instant the movement of the pendulum stopped completely, which could be determined from the film. The curve shows a continuously decreasing rate of wake growth in pure water; initially the rate of growth is almost constant.

Tracings were also drawn from the boundary of the wake in the tests with the linear density gradients. With the aid of these tracings, the vertical ordinate, y, of the wake boundary at x = 0was determined. For a definition sketch of the coordinate axes, see Figure 4. The vertical ordinates, y, were plotted versus time in Figure 5, where the different tests are identified by the value for $a = \frac{1}{\rho_0} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y}$. Although there occurs a certain amount of scatter

due to the way in which y is determined, all curves show the same

tendency. Not only does the rate of growth in the vertical direction diminish, but the wake height reaches a maximum and decreases afterwards. It is readily seen that as the density gradient increases (i.e., increasing value for "a"), the rate of growth of the wake, the maximum wake height y_{max} , and the time t_{col} , in which this maximum height was reached, all decrease.

In order to find the possible influence of the pendulum arrangement, Phase II of the study was conducted. The arm of the pendulum therefore was shortened to approximately one-half of the length used in Phase I. Consequently, the time of agitation decreases by about 10 percent. With this new arrangement, five tests were performed: one in pure water and four with various linear density gradients. The results of Phase II are given in. Figure 6.

Since the paddle size could also have an effect on the phenomenon, a paddle with a 4-inch diameter was built and six tests were carried out with this paddle, using the long pendulum (Phase III). Figure 7 shows the results of this phase of the study. Curves of the same type are obtained, with a larger initial height of the wake, y_{a} .

ANALYSIS OF DATA

A closer look at Figures 5, 6 and 7 immediately reveals certain features of the growth of the turbulent wake in the vertical direction. It is apparent from these curves that in the majority of the tests, the rate of growth during the initial stage

is almost a constant, indicated by the lope, b1, of the straight line fitted through the first-measured points. The actual values of b1 for all tests are given in Table 1. With the aid of b1, the data can be replotted in a dimensionless way, which gives a better picture of what is actually taking place. When plotting $\frac{y-y_0}{y_0}$

-8-

versus $\frac{b_1}{y}$ to the straight line sections coincide on a 1:1 slope (see Figures 5a, 6a and 7a). Depending on the density gradient, expressed non-dimensionally in this case as $\frac{y_o}{h_1} \sqrt{ag}$, the individual curves branch off after some time, showing more clearly that the maximum height, y max, increases with a decreasing density gradient. Moreover, the time of collapse, t col, increases with decreasing density gradient. To find out more about the relationship between the maximum height and the density gradient, $\frac{y_{max} - y_{o}}{y_{o}}$ is plotted versus $\frac{b_{1}}{y_{o}\sqrt{ag}}$ for all available tests.

The result is given in Figure 8. The relationship is linear and the slope is equal to 0.8. This means that

$$\frac{b_1}{(y_{max} - y_0) \sqrt{ag}} = 1.25$$
 [1]

-9-

for all tests, independent of pendulum length or weight, paddle diameter, or density gradient. This relation is especially important because now it is possible to extrapolate this line to values of "a" which occur in other circumstances.

Another linear relationship can be found if $\frac{y_{max} - y_0}{y_0}$ is plotted versus $t_{col} \frac{b_1}{y_0}$ (see Figure 9). The slope of this line is 0.64, which means that

$$\frac{\mathbf{y}_{\text{max}} - \mathbf{y}_{0}}{\mathbf{t}_{\text{col}} \cdot \mathbf{b}_{1}} = 0.64$$
 [2]

Combining the results of [1] and [2], another important constant is obtained:

$$t_{col} \sqrt{ag} = 1.25$$
 [3]

Equation [3] could also have been obtained if $t_{col} \sqrt{ag}$ is computed for all tests and plotted. Figure 10 gives this plot and the average value of $t_{col} \sqrt{ag}$ is again 1.25. It can be seen that there is a certain amount of scatter, but it is difficult to precisely determine t_{col} in the experiment.

-10-

DISCUSSION

Growth of the Wake

In order to obtain a better understanding of what is actually taking place during the growth period of a turbulent wake in a density-stratified fluid, the generation of this wake in the present experiments will be discussed first. As soon as the pendulum starts its swinging motion, a large scale eddy is created which is circular in shape (see Figure 11a). This eddy grows in size through the diffusion of turbulence within it. Although the shape of the wake is initially almost circular, the wake flattens as buoyancy starts playing a role. In fact, at t = 0, when the pendulum stops its motion, the wake shape is not quite circular (see Figure 11b), perhaps because of the more effective turbulent diffusion in the horizontal direction. The wake still grows in the vertical direction, but slightly less rapidly than in the horizontal direction. The energy-containing eddies, which cause the growth of the wake by their entrainment of surrounding fluid, are being suppressed more and more near the top and bottom of the wake. Finally, at the time of collapse, the vertical height and the density difference inside and outside the wake become so large that the stabilizing gravity force is strong enough to suppress the turbulence completely in the vertical direction. At this moment there is only growth in the horizontal direction (see Figure 11c). After collapse, the gravity-induced forces become predominant and the mixed fluid tends to flow sideways to the plane of equilibrium. The motion of the wake profile thereafter depends on the degree of mixing and the density gradient (Figure 11d).

E.

-11-

In the following section, the instant of collapse and the horizontal spreading will be considered in detail.

Instant of Collapse

A rough explanation of the growth process of the wake in the vertical direction can also be attempted in terms of turbulent energy. A water particle near the boundary of the turbulent wake moves as part of a turbulent eddy or puff. Considering only its vertical component, its kinetic energy per unit volume can be described as

K.E. =
$$\rho_0 u'^2$$
 [4]

where ρ_0 is the density of the midplane, assuming that the fluid inside the wake is fully mixed, and $\sqrt{u'^2}$ is the turbulence intensity in the vertical direction.

Because of the presence of a density gradient outside the wake, the same particle becomes surrounded by lighter fluid when crossing the boundary. Assuming again a completely mixed wake, the density difference at the wake edge can be computed as

$$\Delta \rho = \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} y \qquad [5]$$

1.

.

-12-

With respect to the midplane, this particle thus has a potential energy expressed as

$$P.E. = \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} y g y$$
[6]

At the instant of collapse, when the motion in the vertical direction has stopped, the kinetic energy of the fluid near the wake boundary is assumed to be proportionate to the potential energy gained due to displacement from the midplane. This results in the following expression:

$$\frac{\text{K.E.}}{\text{P.E.}} = \frac{\rho_0 \, \overline{u_c'}^2}{y_{\text{max}}^2 \, \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} \, g} = \text{constant} \qquad [7]$$

This can be further reduced to

$$\frac{\sqrt{u_c'^2}}{y_{max}\sqrt{ag}} = \text{constant} \qquad [8]$$

For the present experiments, y_{max} has been measured for a certain \sqrt{ag} . To evaluate the turbulence intensity $\sqrt{\frac{u_c'^2}{u_c'^2}}$, however, a little more has to be said about the turbulence intensity in an axially symmetric wake <u>in pure water</u>.

-13-

A fully turbulent wake is separated from the surrounding nonturbulent fluid by an irregular turbulent front in which large scale eddies convect the fully turbulent fluid outward and simultaneously bring nonturbulent fluid inward. Thus the large scale eddies control the rate of spreading of the turbulent wake, while the small scale eddies bring the entrained fluid to a turbulent state. Because of dissipation and energy transfer to the entrained nonturbulent fluid, the turbulence level inside the wake will lower continuously. From the principle of Reynolds number similarity, the velocity of advance of the turbulent front is proportional to the root-mean-square turbulent velocity:

$$\frac{1}{\sqrt{\frac{1}{u'^2}}} \frac{d\sqrt{r^2}}{dt} = \text{constant} \qquad [9]$$

Townsend (Reference 5) has verified this equation and found the constant to be 0.51. The constant will be approximately the same for an axially symmetric wake, so

$$\sqrt{\overline{u'^2}} \approx 2 \frac{d\sqrt{r^2}}{dt}$$

[10]

-14-

Let us now return to the present study where there is also the effect of stratification. In order to find a suitable value

of $\frac{d\sqrt{r^2}}{dt}$ at the instant of collapse, let us try to understand the behavior of the mixed region in the turbulent wake during the initial stage of wake growth. In the early wake, turbulent mixing is the dominant feature of the motion, and the wake expands in all directions. If a particle is considered at some x and y (see Figure 4), then the mean turbulent motion is almost radial. This radial turbulent vector has a y-component vertically upward for the particle shown in Figure 4 and a horizontal component in the -x direction. Until the instant of collapse, the x-component is affected very little by the density gradient, while the upward motion is suppressed by the gravity-induced force due to the density gradient. That is, a particle on the x-axis is not significantly influenced by gravitational effects during the period of vertical wake height increase. During the collapse of the wake, however, the gravity forces start to influence the behavior of the mixed region by returning the fluid containing the displaced salinity toward a level of density equilibriur, where it spreads laterally. This means that during the collapse stage a change in the horizontal spreading is to be expected. Before collapse, however, the horizontal spreading should be the same as in the pure water case. This concept will be checked now with the aid of experimental results. In Figure 12,

 $\frac{\sqrt{r^2} - \sqrt{r_0^2}}{\sqrt{r_0^2}}$

versus time for the pure water case and $\frac{x-x_0}{x_0}$ versus time for several runs in density-stratified fluid are plotted. The plots show that indeed in the beginning there doesn't appear to be much difference between the wake growth in fresh water and that in density-stratified fluid. At the moment of collapse, the line is dotted and the slope of the line is very close to the slope in the pure water case. The curvature changes after collapse, as can be clearly seen in Figure 12. This is due to the sudden lateral surge when the heavier fluid flows down and sideways to its own density level. Note that the change in curvature is larger and earlier with increasing $a = \frac{1}{\rho_o} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y}$ as was to be expected. Since it has now been shown that the turbulence intensity that would have existed in the vertical direction at y_{max} and at t_{col} in the case of density-stratified flow can be found by calculating the slope of the pure water $\sqrt{r^2}$ versus time-curve at t_{col} , the ratio, in Equation [8], can be computed for each run. These values of

 $\frac{\sqrt{u'c}}{y_{max}\sqrt{ag}}$ are tabulated in Table 1 and appear to be more or less constant, with an average value of 0.36. In general, then, it can be stated that approximately

$$\frac{\sqrt{u'_c}}{y_{max}\sqrt{ag}} = 0.36$$

[11]

-15-

•

Let us compare this value with values which can be analyzed from data obtained by other investigators. Both Kennedy et al (Reference 3) and Schooley (Reference 1) have done experiments on the wake of a self-propelled body moving in a fluid with a vertical density gradient. From their data the following results can be computed for comparison.

Kennedy et al	Schooley and Stewart
Slope at t = 0.61 ips	Slope at t _{col} = 2.71 cm/sec
$\sqrt{u_c'^2}$ = 1.22 ips a = 0.003 ft ⁻¹	$\sqrt{u_c^{2}} = 5.42 \text{ cm/sec}$ a = 0.1585 ft ⁻¹
$\frac{y_{max}}{y_0} = 2.16$	$\frac{y_{max}}{y_0} = 4.32$
$y_0 = 3 \text{Jm}$	$y_0 = 1.1 \text{ cm}$
$y_{max} = 6.5 in$	$y_{max} = 4.75$ cm
\sqrt{ag} = 0.31 sec ⁻¹	\sqrt{ag} = 2.26 sec ⁻¹
$\frac{\sqrt{u'c}}{y_{max}} = 0.604$	$\frac{\sqrt{u'_{c}^{2}}}{y_{max}} = 0.504$
$t_{col} \sqrt{ag} = 3.04$	$t_{col} \sqrt{ag} = 2.26$
$\frac{b_1}{(y_{max} - y_0) \sqrt{ag}} = 1.2$	$\frac{b_1}{(y_{max} - y_0) \sqrt{ag}} = 1.26$

-16-

-17-

Stockhausen, Clark and Kennedy deduced the size of the mixed region from isochlor maps obtained from measurements using conductivity probes. With the occurrence of internal waves, however, this method is a rather inaccurate one. A plot of the heights and widths of the envelopes of the zone of disruption versus distance behind the model was estimated, from which the abovementioned values could be computed. In spite of the inaccurate way of determining the height and width of the wake, the results are not too different from those in the present study. The dimensionless time of collapse will be somewhat larger for the case with a self-propelled body because at t = 0 in the present study the wake already had a certain finite size.

Schooley and Stewart used a much larger density gradient than in our studies. In relation to the large a-value, the value for $\frac{y_{max}}{y_0}$ seems rather large, but is due to the high turbulence velocities. The dimensionless time of collapse is larger again than in the present study, as has been explained above. The value of 1.26 for $\frac{b_1}{(y_{max}-y_0)\sqrt{ag}}$ agrees well with the value 1.25 in the present study. In both studies the value for $\frac{\sqrt{u_c'^2}}{y_{max}\sqrt{ag}}$ is slightly higher (by about 50 percent) than in the present case. The reason may be sought in the actual density distribution in-

side the wake. Figure 13 shows the difference between the theoretically assumed density distribution and a possible actual

-18-

density distribution. Of course, the actual density distribution in a wake behind a self-propelled body may be somewhat different from that resulting from the use of a spiral paddle. The degree of mixing in the wake is a problem which is very important when one starts to compare one experimental study with another. The effect of the degree of mixing should be studied further in the future.

Townsend, in Reference 7, states a criterion for the existence of turbulent motion in the presence of a sharp density interface. Townsend checked his considerations with a series of experiments in which a liquid jet was injected horizontally along the interface between a dense solution of salt in water. From a cine record, estimates could be made of the velocity and width of the jet. It was found that entrainment of fluid by the jet almost ceased when the Richardson number (which increases with distance from the nozzle) exceeded 0.3. Beyond this point, the velocity and cross-section of the jet remained nearly constant, indicating very little entrainment and presumably very little turbulent motion. The Richardson number criterion, then, determines the conditions under which the stability of the water reaches a sufficient value so that turbulence cannot act against it and vertical motion ceases entirely (see also Reference 8).

Townsend computed the critical Richardson number in his case as

 $R_{1} = 0.064 \text{ g} [(\rho_{1} - \rho_{2})/\bar{\rho}] (D/U_{m}^{2})$ [12]

-19-

where

D was the observed width, and

 U_m the mean velocity of advance.

When applying this to the present study, this Richardson number becomes

$$R_{1_{c}} = 0.064 \text{ g} \frac{\frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} y_{\max} \frac{1}{\rho_{0}} \cdot 2 \cdot y_{\max}}{\overline{u'^{2}}} \cdot \frac{\overline{u'^{2}}}{\overline{u_{m}}^{2}} \qquad [13]$$

Substituting Equation [11] gives

$$R_{1_{c}} = 0.128 \cdot \left(\frac{1}{0.36}\right)^{2} \cdot \frac{\overline{u'^{2}}}{U_{m}^{2}}$$
 [14]

From data given by Townsend (Reference 5) the ratio of $\overline{u'^2}$ and U_m^2 can be estimated as

$$\frac{\sqrt{u'^2}}{U_{\text{max}}} = 0.22 \text{ and } \frac{U_{\text{m}}}{U_{\text{max}}} = 0.45$$
 [15]

The above ratios combined and squared results in

$$\frac{\overline{u'^2}}{U_m^2} = 0.24$$
 [16]

-20-

The critical Richardson number for the present study is then computed as

$$R_{i_c} = 0.128 \times 7.7 \times 0.24 = 0.24$$
 [17]

Townsend (Reference 7) found experimentally the value 0.3 as the critical Richardson number. This agreement is remarkably close.

Horizontal Spreading

With respect to the horizontal extent of the wake (see Figure 12), Kennedy stated that the horizontal extent appears to increase almost linearly with time. From Figure 12 it is clear in our case, too, that initially the horizontal extent of the wake grows linearly with time. However, as time goes on, the curve becomes convex. During the time of collapse, the curvature changes and becomes concave for a short time interval, then changes again into a convex curve. Finally, the relationship becomes more or less linear; again afterwards, of course, the curve becomes once more convex since due to inadequate mixing, the wake never extended horizontally all the way to the sidewalls of the tank. All these changes in curvature are demonstrated by one example given in Figure 14. In Figure 12 the initial changes can be observed more accurately for several other runs. The above-mentioned changes in curvature can only be observed if many data points are taken. If there are only several data points or one neglects small changes in curvatures, then the curve can be approximated by:

-21-

- A straightline section through the first-measured points,
- 2. A convex part of the curve, changing into.
- 3. Another straightline section, and
- 4. Once more a convex part.

This configuration can be seen from Figure 14. Moreover the curve of horizontal width of the wake versus time obtained by Schooley and Stewart has these same general features.

Collapsing Stages

With data about the horizontal extent of the wake available, a comparison can be made with the experiments of Wu (Reference 3). With <u>no turbulence present</u> in his experiments he defined three processes of collapse: initial, principal, and final stages. He derived empirical formulae to describe the wake collapse of the first two stages. The initial collapse stage he expressed as follows:

$$\frac{\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_{o}}{\mathbf{x}_{o}} = c \left(t' \sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_{o}} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} g} \right)^{n}$$
 [18]

where x_0 is the horizontal extent at the moment of collapse, and t' the time after collapse. The constants "c" and "n" can be found when $\frac{x-x_0}{x_0}$ is plotted versus $t'\sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_0}}\frac{\partial\rho}{\partial y}g$. For the

-22-

present study, this is carried out for three experiments of Phase I, one of Phase II and one of Phase III (see Figure 15). The average slope of the straightline segments is 0.94 and the average dimensionless time reading for their intersections on the

line $\left(\frac{\mathbf{x}-\mathbf{x}_{0}}{\mathbf{x}_{0}}\right) = 0.1$ is 0.6. The values for "c" and "n" can now

be determined to be:

Present study	Wu's experiments
c = 0.16	c = 0.29
n = 0.94	n = 1.08

In order to find the relationship for the principal collapse

 $\frac{\mathbf{x}}{\mathbf{x}_0}$ is plotted versus $t' \sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_0} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial \mathbf{y}} \mathbf{g}}$. The straightline segments shown in Figure 16 have an average slope of 0.34, while the average of their intersection with the line $\frac{\mathbf{x}}{\mathbf{x}_0} = 1$ is at $t' \sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_0} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial \mathbf{y}} \mathbf{g}} = 0.95$. The expression for the principal stage of collapse can then be given as

$$\frac{\mathbf{x}}{\mathbf{x}_{o}} = c \left(\mathbf{t}' \sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_{o}} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial \mathbf{y}} \mathbf{g}} \right)^{n}$$
[19]

where the values for the constants are c = 1.02 and n = 0.34, while Wu found c = 1.03 and n = 0.55.

The reason that the "c" and "n" values in the present study are different from the values Wu found is undoubtedly that in his experiments, the gravitational effect was made to be predominant throughout the motion. In the present study, however, <u>both</u> turbulence and gravity play an important role. Another reason is that in Wu's experiments the fluid inside the wake was more completely mixed and had a density very close to ρ_0 . As has been mentioned before, the density distribution inside the wake looks approximately like the distribution given in Figure 13.

The above-mentioned reasons also help explain the difference in area measurements of the wake in both studies. Wu found, in the absence of turbulence, no change in the wake volume during collapse, and thus concluded that the mixed fluid inside the wake maintains its density during the wake collapse. As a comparison, the areas for several tests in the present study have been plotted in a convenient way in Figure 17. Before collapse the area increases linearly with time. Then the curve becomes convex and undergoes several undulations, presumably due to internal waves. The area of the wake still seems to increase considerably after the wake has collapsed. Besides these two reasons: -24-

1. The presence of turbulence, and

2. The density of fluid inside the wake is not constant, there is a third important reason (experimental) for the apparent area increase:

3. As time increases, the wake created by the agitation of the paddle becomes less two-dimensional so that the actual rate of growth in volume may be less than the apparent rate as observed through the front wall.

CONCLUSIONS

The growth of a wake in a density-stratified medium can be studied in detail by means of a spiral paddle agitated by a pendulum-type arrangement. In the vertical direction the rate of growth of the wake is initially constant, but finally ceases, whereupon the wake collapses vertically. This initial rate of growth, the maximum vertical extent of the wake, and the time of collapse have been related to the Vaisala frequency. Independent of the size of the spiral paddle and the type of pendulum arrangement, two empirical constants have been determined:

$$\frac{b_1}{(y_{max} - y_0) \sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_0} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} g}} = 1.25$$

and

$$t_{col} \sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_o} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} g} = 1.25$$

Besides accurate measurements of the vertical extent of the wake a precise description is also given of the horizontal spreading of the wake. These measurements were used to estimate the turbulence intensity at the time of collapse in the presence of a density gradient. It was found that the ratio of the kinetic energy and the gain of potential energy at the moment of collapse is a constant which may be expressed as follows:

 $\frac{\sqrt{\frac{1}{u'_{c}^{2}}}}{y_{max}\sqrt{\frac{1}{\rho_{o}}\frac{\partial\rho}{\partial y}g}} = 0.36$

There is a need for a parameter to take into account the degree of mixing inside the wake. This is especially important when comparing different experimentally obtained data. After collapse, the horizontal spreading was analyzed for several runs. The occurrence of three stages of collapse as observed by Wu, was checked in the present study where gravitational forces as well as turbulence play an important role. All three states were

-26-

clearly noticeable. The constants in the empirical formulae describing the initial and principal stages of collapse were found to be somewhat different from those found by Wu, due to incomplete mixing of the fluid inside the wake and the presence of turbulence.

The volume of the wake after collapse seemed to increase further, possibly as a consequence of the presence of turbulence.

-27-

REFERENCES

- 1. Schooley, A. H., Stewart, R. W., "Experiments with a Self-Propelled Body Submerged in a Fluid with a Vertical Density Gradient," Journal of Fluid Mechanics, Vol. 15, Part 1, January 1963.
- Wu, J., "Collapse of Turbulent Wakes in Density-Stratified Media," HYDRONAUTICS, Incorporated, Technical Report 231-4, January 1965.
- 3. Kennedy, J. F., Stockhausen, P.J., Clark, C. B., "Threedimensional Momentumless Wakes in Density-Stratified Liquids," M.I.T. Hydrodynamics Laboratory, Report No. 93, June 1966.
- 4. Wu, J., "Experiments on Free Turbulence in Visco-Elastic Fluids," HYDRONAUTICS, Incorporated, Technical Report 353-1, March 1965.
- 5. Townsend, A. A., "The Structure of Turbulent Shear Flow," Cambridge University Press, London, 1965.
- 6. Wu, J., "Flow Phenomena Caused by the Collapse of a Mixed Region in a Density-Stratified Medium," HYDRONAUTICS, Incorporated, Technical Report 231-11, March 1966.
- 7. Townsend, A. A., "Turbulent Flow in a Stably Stratified Atmosphere," Journal of Fluid Mechanics, 3, Part 4, 1958.
- 8. Defant, A., "Physical Oceanography," Pergamon Press, 1961.

.

TABLE 1

Experimental Results

	a ft ⁻¹	y _o inch	y _{max} inch	t _{col} sec	b ₁ ips	t _{col} √ag —	√u _c ' ips	$\frac{\sqrt{u_{c}^{'}}}{y_{max}\sqrt{ag}}$
Phase I	0.000 0.002 0.00273 0.00542 0.00537 0.00537 0.01074 0.0210 0.0203	1.91.8251.561.711.501.541.611.601.63	2.86 2.37 2.49 2.11 2.26 2.01 1.81 1.9	5.25 5.0 4.1 3.25 3.25 2.4 1.5 1.3	0.35 0.35 0.32 0.276 0.302 0.244 0.17 0.24	1.33 1.48 1.21 1.35 1.35 1.4 1.23 1.05	0.197 0.211 0.274 0.355 0.355 0.456 0.584 c.616	0.272 0.30 0.272 0.403 0.378 0.388 0.393 0.40
Phase II	0.0000 0.00545 0.00547 0.0109 0.0217	1.77 1.60 1.47 1.63 1.66	2.19 2.21 2.12 2.0	2.75 2.75 1.5 1.5	0.46 0.36 0.35 0.343 0.27	1.12 1.12 0.89 1.25	0.33 0.33 0.53 0.53	0.36 0.36 0.42 0.32
Phase III	0.00000 0.00545 0.00547 0.0211 0.0423 0.0432	3.075 3.22 2.80 2.96 2.48 2.64	3.68 3.21 3.22 2.72 2.92	2.5 1.75 1.3 1.1 1.0	0.685 0.26 0.255 0.31 0.42 0.33	1.05 0.73 1.07 1.28 1.18	0.68 0.80 0.94 1.0 1.04	0.442 0.59 0.355 0.315 0.304







FIGURE 2 - SPIRAL PADDLES, 4 IN AND 2 IN DIAMETERS



t = 0.25 SEC

t = 1.50 SEC



t = 3.5 SEC

Superference in the

t = 7 SEC

FIGURE 3 - SAMPLE PICTURES OF SPREADING AND COLLAPSE OF WAKE FOR a = 0.0054 (FRONT VIEW)



FIGURE 4 - DEFINITION SKETCH OF WAKE

٩.



FIGURE 5 - GROWTH AND SUBSEQUENT COLLAPSE IN THE VERTICAL DIRECTION - PHASE I



FIGURE 5a - DIMENSIONLESS TIME HISTORY OF VERTICAL ORDINATE OF WAKE - PHASE I





WAKE - PHASE II



DIRECTION - PHASE III



FIGURE 7a - DIMENSIONLESS TIME HISTORY OF VERTICAL ORDINATE OF WAKE - PHASE III







110



-

FIGURE 10 - SCATTER IN DIMENSIONLESS TIME OF COLLAPSE



FIGURE 11a - WAKE SHAPE DURING GENERATION



FIGURE 116 - WAKE SHAPE DURING GROWTH



FIGURE 11c - WAKE SHAPE AT TIME OF COLLAPSE



FIGURE 11d - WAKE SHAPE AFTER COLLAPSE



FIGURE 12 - EFFECT OF COLLAPSE ON RATE OF SPREADING IN THE HORIZONTAL DIRECTION

. .



• 2.

FIGURE 13 - COMPARISON OF THEORETICAL AND ACTUAL DENSITY DISTRIBUTION INSIDE THE WAKE



FIGURE 14 - HORIZONTAL SPREADING FOR a = 0.002, PHASE I





•<u>×</u> •<u>×</u>-×



FIGURE 16 - PRINCIPAL STAGE OF WAKE COLLAPSE

°x x



FIGURE 17 - INCREASING AREAS OF WAKE WITH TIME

Jecurity Classification DOCUMENT	T CONTROL DATA - RA	D			
(Security classification of title, body of abstract and 1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Comparets author)	indexing annotation must be e	ntered when	the overall report is classified) RT SECURITY C LASSIFICATION		
HYDRONAUTICS, Incorporated		Uncl	assified		
Pindell School Road, Howard (County,	25 GROU	P		
Laurel, Maryland					
THE GROWTH OF A TURBULENT WAI	KE IN A DENSITY	-STRAT	IFIED FLUID		
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive date	e)				
Technical Report					
van de Watering, Walter P. M.					
I REPORT DATE	78 TOTAL NO. OF	AGES	75. NO. OF REFS		
November 1966	47		77		
Norma 2600/00) ND 000 16		EPONT NUM	10 E M(3)		
NONT 3000(00) NR 220-10 6. Project no.	Technical	Report	t 231-12		
ç	95. OTHER REPORT NO(5) (Any other numbers that may				
0. A VAIL ABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES	·····				
Distribution of this Docume	nt is Unlimited	Ĺ			
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPONSORING MIL	TARY ACT	VITY		
	Office of	Naval	Research		
	Departmen	t of th	ne Navy		
eventually cease its vertical growth and the the present investigation this phenomenon was created by means of a spiral paddle, of transparent lucite tank. Data were obtain 16 mm movie camera. Both the pendulum find the possible influence of the experime It was observed that the initia depending primarily on the density gradien paddle diameter). This initial rate of grow the wake, the time at which collapse begin that time, were all correlated with the Val which seemed to be independent of the ex-	hen to collapse towar has been studied exp agitated by a pendulo hed from tracings of t arrangement and the ental conditions. Al rate of growth in the int and the agitation is with of the wake, the ins and the turbulence bisala frequency, resu perimental condition three stages of collapse	rds its hor perimenta um-type of he motion paddle d me vertico mechanism maximum e intensifu ulting in s.	rizontal midplane. In Ily. The turbulent wake arrangement outside a n pictures taken by a diameter were varied to al direction is constant, m (i.e. pendulum and n vertical thickness of ty within the wake at three important constant		
had been defined previously by Wu; some observed, however.	differences in the po	st-collap	se behavior were		

UNCLASSIFIED

Security Classification								
14.		LIN	LINK A		LINK D		LINK C	
KEY WORDS		ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	
Stratified Flow continuous density gradient turbulence mixing								
Turbulent Wake								
wake growth wake collapse								
INSTR 1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of De- fense activity or other organization (corporate suffor) issuing the report.	UCTIONS imposed such as: (1)	by security "Qualified report from	classific requeste DDC.''	ation, usi	ing stand tain copi	ard state es of this	mente	
 22. REPORT SECORTY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the over- all security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Date" is included. Marking is to be in accord- ance with appropriate security regulations. 26. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Di- rective 5200.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as author- ized. 	 (2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized." (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through (4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this 							
3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classifica- tion, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title. 4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, suter the type of	(5)	"All distrib ified DDC u	tly from st through oution of isers sha	bDC. Oth h this repor il request	t is cont through	rolied Q	" uel- ."	
report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, winual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.	If the Services cate this	e report has , Departments fact and en	been fur t of Com iter the p	nished to merce, for rice, if kn	the Offic sale to	e of Tecl the public	nical ; indi-	
5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of	11. SUP tory note	PLEMENT	ARY NOT	ES: Use	for addit	ional exp	lana-	

12. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY: Enter the name of the departmental project office or laboratory sponsoring (paying for) the research and development. Include address.

13. ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual summary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may also appear elsewhere in the body of the technical re port. If additional space is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached.

It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as (TS), (S), (C), or (U)

There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. However, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words.

14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no security classification is required. Identifiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical con-text. The assignment of links, rales, and weights is optional.

or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).

the principal author is an absolute minimum requirement.

6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day,

7. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count

should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the

76. NUMBER OF REFERENCES Enter the total number of

Sa. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which

86, 80, 6, 6d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate military department identification, such as project number,

9. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the offi-

ciei report number by which the document will be identified

90 OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been as signed any other report numbers (either by the originator

and controlled by the originating activity. This number must

10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limstations on further dissemination of the report, other than those

sulproject number, system numbers, task number, etc.

on the report, use date of publication.

number of pages containing information.

references cited in the report.

the report was written.

be unique to this report.

month, year, or month, year. If more than one date appears

023551

UNCLASSIFIED Security Classification